# Palms Neighborhood Council Bylaws & Ground Rules Ad Hoc Committee

Nick Greif, Chair Neal Anderberg, Vice-Chair V. Claire Jadulang, Member Alison Regan, Member

# CITY OF LOS ANGELES CALIFORNIA





10008 National Blvd. #210 Los Angeles, CA 90034

Phone: (424) 256-5762 www.palmsnc.la facebook.com/PalmsLA @palmsnc

# PALMS NEIGHBORHOOD COUNCIL

Bylaws & Ground Rules Committee General Meeting Agenda Tuesday, January 24, 2016 – 7:00 p.m. Fire Station 43 – 3690 Motor Avenue, Los Angeles, CA 90034

The Neighborhood Council system enables meaningful civic participation for all Angelenos and serves as a voice for improving government responsiveness to local communities and their needs. We are an advisory body to the City of Los Angeles, comprised of stakeholder volunteers who are devoted to the mission of improving our communities.

# I. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL

- a. Call to Order
- b. Roll Call

# II. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT (10 minutes)

a. Limited to non-agenda items – subjects related to bylaws and ground rules committee issues only

# III. COMMITTEE BUSINESS

**a. MOTION:** Discussion and possible action amending the Bylaws to revise election proceedings, executive board officers, and representative elections, encompassing sections including, but not limited to, Article III.2, V.1, V.2, VI.1-6, VII. 1-2, VIII. 3 and Bylaws Attachment B [See attached amended version with red-line/track-changes]

# IV. Adjournment

Time allocations for agenda items are approximate and may be shortened or lengthened at the discretion of the President. Public comment will be taken for each motion as well as for any item in the consent agenda prior to Board action. The public is requested to fill out a "Speaker Card" to address the Assembly on any item of the agenda prior to the Assembly taking action on an item. Comments from the public on Agenda items will be heard only when the respective item is being considered. Comments from the public on other matters not appearing on the Agenda that is within the Assembly's subject matter jurisdiction will be heard during the Public Comment period. Public comment is limited to 1 to 2 minutes per speaker, at the discretion or unless waived by the Assembly. In the interest of addressing all items on the agenda, time limits for individual comments and discussion may be set at the discretion of the President. All items on the consent agenda will be determined by a single Committee vote and without Committee discussion. Committee members may request that any item be removed from the consent agenda and considered individually at any time prior to that vote.

Per Board of Neighborhood Commissioners Policy #2014-01, agendas are posted for public review at: 1) Woodbine Park Kiosk, 3409 S. Vinton Ave.; 2) Palms Neighborhood Council website, <a href="https://www.palmsla.org">www.palmsla.org</a>.

In compliance with Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt writings that are distributed to a majority or all of the board in advance of a meeting may be viewed at Woodbine Park Kiosk, 3409 S. Vinton Ave, at our website: www.palmsla.org or at the scheduled meeting. In addition, if you would like a copy of any record related to an item on the agenda, please contact the Secretary at palmscouncil@gmail.com

Palms NC Board and Committee members abide by a code of civility (http://empowerla.org/code-of-conduct/). Any person who interferes with the conduct of a Neighborhood Council meeting by willfully interrupting and/or disrupting the meeting is subject to removal. A peace officer may be requested to assist with the removal should any person fail to comply with an order of removal by the Neighborhood Council. Any person who resists removal by a peace officer is subject to arrest and prosecution pursuant to California Penal Code Section 403.

As a covered entity under Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Los Angeles does not discriminate on the basis of disability and upon request, will provide reasonable accommodation to ensure equal access to its programs, services, and activities. Sign language interpreters, assistive

listening devices, or other auxiliary aids and/or services may be provided upon request. To ensure availability of services, please make your request at least 3 business days (72 hours) prior to the meeting you wish to attend by contacting the Secretary at <a href="mailto:palmscouncil@gmail.com">palmscouncil@gmail.com</a>

SI REQUIERE SERVICIOS DE TRADUCCION, FAVOR DE NOTIFICAR A LA OFICINA 3 DIAS DE TRABAJO (72 HORAS) ANTES DEL EVENTO. SI NECESITA ASISTENCIA CON ESTA NOTIFICACION, POR FAVOR LLAME A NUESTRA OFICINA AL <u>palmscouncil@gmail.com</u>

# Commented [NG1]: Check this matches final version

# Palms Neighborhood Council Bylaws Table of Contents

Approved by Department of Neighborhood Empowerment 6.1.2015

<u>ARTICLE I NAME</u>	3
ARTICLE II PURPOSE	3
ARTICLE III BOUNDARIES	3
SECTION 1: BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION	3
SECTION 2: INTERNAL BOUNDARIES	3
ARTICLE IV STAKEHOLDER	4
ARTICLE V GOVERNING BOARD	4
SECTION 1: COMPOSITION	4
SECTION 2: QUORUM	4
SECTION 3: OFFICIAL ACTIONS	4
SECTION 4: TERMS AND TERM LIMITS	5
Section 5: Duties and Powers	5
SECTION 6: VACANCIES	5
SECTION 7: ABSENCES	5
SECTION 8: CENSURE	5
SECTION 9: REMOVAL	6
SECTION 10: RESIGNATION	6
SECTION 11: COMMUNITY OUTREACH	6
ARTICLE VI EXECUTIVE BOARD OFFICERS	6
SECTION 1: OFFICERS OF THE BOARD	6
SECTION 2: DUTIES AND POWERS	6
SECTION 3: SELECTION OF OFFICERS	8
Section 4: Officer Terms	8
ARTICLE VII COMMITTEES AND THEIR DUTIES	8
SECTION 1: STANDING	8
SECTION 2: AD HOC	8
SECTION 3: COMMITTEE CREATION AND AUTHORIZATION	8
ARTICLE VIII MEETINGS	9
SECTION 1: GENERAL ASSEMBLY MEETING	9
SECTION 2: AGENDA SETTING	9
SECTION 3: NOTIFICATIONS/POSTINGS	9
Section 4: Reconsideration	9
SECTION 5: SPECIAL MEETINGS	10
ARTICLE IX FINANCES	10
ARTICLE X ELECTIONS	10
SECTION 1: ADMINISTRATION OF ELECTIONS	10
SECTION 2: GOVERNING BOARD STRUCTURE AND VOTING	10

SECTION 3: MINIMUM VOTING AGE				
SECTION 4: METHOD OF VERIFYING STAKEHOLDER STATUS	10			
SECTION 5: RESTRICTIONS ON CANDIDATES RUNNING FOR MULTIPLE SEATS	10			
SECTION 6: OTHER ELECTION RELATED LANGUAGE	11			
ARTICLE XI GRIEVANCE PROCESS	11			
ARTICLE XII PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY	11			
ARTICLE XIII AMENDMENTS	12			
ARTICLE XIV COMPLIANCE	12			
SECTION 1: CODE OF CIVILITY	12			
Section 2: Training	12			
SECTION 3: SELF ASSESSMENT	12			
ATTACHMENT A – MAP OF NEIGHBORHOOD COUNCIL	13			
ATTACUMENT D COVEDNING DOADD STDUCTUDE AND VOTING	14			

### **Article I NAME**

The name of this organization is PALMS NEIGHBORHOOD COUNCIL, also referred to in this document as "the Council."

# **Article II PURPOSE**

We, the stakeholders of Palms, recognize that every member of our neighborhood is significant. We recognize the powerful and varied gifts that every member can give to our community. By drawing on our diversity, we can make a better life for all of us in our neighborhood. In short, our vision encompasses inclusiveness, unity and improvement.

Our mission is to be a coordinating agency for the social, developmental and other concerns of its Stakeholders. We monitor the delivery of City services in our area and have periodic meetings with responsible officials of City departments. We maintain a two-way flow of information between the community and city officials. We engage in social and cultural events as a way of binding the community.

Our objective is to build a sense of community.

# **Article III BOUNDARIES**

# **Section 1: Boundary Description**

The boundaries of the Council are, beginning at the intersection of Sepulveda Boulevard and Charnock Road, east on Charnock Road (the south side only) to Overland Avenue, north on Overland Avenue (the east side only) to the I- 10, east on I-10 (south side only) and the eastbound Robertson Boulevard exit lanes off I-10 to the Culver City border, southwest along the Culver City border to I-405, north on I-405 to Venice Boulevard, east on Venice Boulevard to Tuller Avenue, north on Tuller Avenue (east side only) to Regent Street, east on Regent Street (south side only) to Sepulveda Boulevard, north on Sepulveda Boulevard to Charnock Road (east side of Sepulveda only). In addition, for geographic and historic reasons, Charnock Road Elementary and Palms Middle schools are considered an overlap area with the Mar Vista Community Council.

#### **Section 2: Internal Boundaries**

The internal boundaries of the Council are set forth in Attachment A - Maps of the Palms Neighborhood Council Boundaries.

#### Residential

- A. Palms West
- B. Overland
- C. Motor
- D. Studio
- E. Exposition

#### **Business**

- 1. Pacific Electric
- 2. Charnock Ranch
- 3. Palms Depot

# Article IV STAKEHOLDER

Neighborhood Council membership is open to all Stakeholders. "Stakeholders" shall be defined as those who live, work or own real property in the neighborhood and also to those who declare a stake in the neighborhood as a community interest stakeholder, defined as a person who affirms a substantial and ongoing participation within the Neighborhood Council's boundaries and who may be in a community organization such as, but not limited to, educational, non-profit and/or religious organizations.

All Stakeholders are automatically members of the Council.

### Article V GOVERNING BOARD

# **Section 1: Composition**

Thirteen (13) Stakeholders comprise the Representative Assembly, which is the governing body and is also referred to in this document as "the Assembly." The Representatives are as follows:

- 1. President (elected at large by all stakeholders).
- 2. Vice President (elected at large by all stakeholders).
- 3. Secretary (elected at large by all stakeholders).
- 4. Treasurer (elected at large by all stakeholders).
- 5. Community-Based Organization Representative (elected at-large by all stakeholders).
- 6.-10. Five (5) Residential Area Representatives (elected by residential stakeholders within those areas).
- 11.-13. Three-Two (32) Business Area-Representatives (elected at large by all business stakeholders within those areas).
- 14. One (1) Youth Seat (elected at large by all stakeholders over 14 years of age and under 21 years of age)

No single community stakeholder group shall comprise a majority of the Council's governing body unless extenuating circumstances are warranted and approved by the Department of Neighborhood Empowerment (Department).

# Section 2: Quorum

A quorum is more than half seven (7)0of the seated members of the Representative Assembly and a majority of a committee or subcommittee.

# **Section 3: Official Actions**

A simple majority vote by the Representatives present and voting, not including abstentions, at a meeting at which there is a quorum shall be required to take official action, unless specified otherwise in these Bylaws.

Abstentions are not counted as votes in determining majority vote.

#### **Section 4: Terms and Term Limits**

Representatives serve two (2) year terms, except for vacancy appointments, or until their successors are seated, or until they resign or otherwise leave office. There are no term limits.

**Commented [NG2]:** Should we call it the NC Board? Why Representative Assembly?

#### **Section 5: Duties and Powers**

The Assembly has the authority granted to neighborhood councils by the City Charter and the Plan for a Citywide System of Neighborhood Councils ("the Plan").

The Assembly develops, maintains and fulfills a program to communicate with Stakeholders on a regular and timely basis.

The Assembly may also appoint non-voting advisory members to represent the Neighborhood Watch, youth, other groups and the assembly.

Representatives must attend and participate in meetings of the Assembly.

Representatives should attend and participate in at least one of the Council's committees, as assigned by the President.

#### Section 6: Vacancies

A vacancy in the Assembly is filled by the following procedure: Stakeholders will be publicly notified that the Board has a vacancy to be filled in a specific category.

- 1. Eligible stakeholders submit written applications to the Secretary for verification.
- 2. The Secretary forwards the name of eligible Stakeholders to the President.
- 3. The President fills the vacancy, subject to <u>majority</u> approval by the Assembly.
- 4. Vacancy appointments are valid only until the next election, if the term has not yet expired, at which time an eligible stakeholder is elected to fill the remainder of the term filled by appointment.
- Assembly appoints a President and Vice-President are both vacant, then the Assembly appoints a President, following the latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order for "nominations from the floor" (i.e. from members of the board). Voting will take place by roll call vote based on a majority vote. Successive rounds of voting will drop the lowest vote receiving candidate until a majority candidate is elected.

# Section 7: Absences

Any Representative who misses three (3) regularly scheduled consecutive regular or special Council meetings without an excused absence will be automatically removed from the Assembly. Each Representative's absence shall be recorded in the Council's Meeting Minutes or other manner of Council record keeping, and that, upon missing the required number of Council meetings for removal, the Council Presiding Officer shall notify the Representative of the absences and place on the agenda the removal of the Representative at a regular or special Assembly meeting whereupon the Assembly shall determine the validity of the absences before taking action to remove the Representative.

Any meeting of the Assembly, scheduled and noticed as per the Brown Act, shall constitute a meeting for the purpose of determining Board Member attendance.

# **Section 8: Censure**

The Council can take action to publicly reprimand a Representative for actions conducted in the course of Council business by censuring the Representative at a Council meeting. Censures shall be placed on the agenda for discussion and action.

Section 9: Removal

Formatted: Font: Cambria, 12 pt

**Commented [NG3]:** This is in conflict of the below part of the paragraph.

**Commented [NG4]:** This appears to conflict with the term "regularly scheduled" in the paragraph above.

A Representative may be removed from the Assembly by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Representatives present. Reasons for removal must be objective and may include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Inability to carry out the duties of the office due to time limitations, illness and/or other personal obligations.
- 2. Absence from three (3) consecutive regular or special meetings of the Council.
- 3. A finding by judicial determination to have failed to disclose a financial conflict of interest in a matter before the Council or a committee.
- 4. Continued and flagrant violation of the bylaws or the Ground Rules (Article II).

A vote to remove a Representative must be preceded by:

- 1. <u>Proof of Notification notification by certified mail</u> to the Representative that a vote will be taken. <u>Proof can include a response to an e-mail notification, notification at a public meeting with witnesses present, or certified mail sent to the address on file with DONE.</u>
- 2. A waiting period of fifteen (15) days between the time of mailing the notice or proof of notification and the time of the vote.
- 3. An opportunity for the Representative to address the Assembly before the vote is taken.

The Representative shall not be counted as part of the quorum, nor allowed to vote on the matter.

The Council will consult with its legal counsel, the Office of the City Attorney, throughout this removal process.

# **Section 10: Resignation**

A Representative may resign by giving oral or written notice to the President, the Secretary, or the Assembly. Such resignation will become effective on the date specified therein. If no date is specified, the resignation shall become effective at the time of acceptance by the Assembly.

#### **Section 11: Community Outreach**

The Council shall direct that a system of outreach be instituted to inform Stakeholders as to the existence and activities of the Council, including its Assembly elections, to find future leaders of the Council, and to encourage all Stakeholders to seek leadership positions within the Council.

# **Article VI OFFICERS**

#### Section 1: Officers of the Board

Officers are the President, the Vice President, the Secretary, <u>and</u> the Treasurer <u>and the Organization / Non-Profit Representative</u>.

Commented [NG5]: Revised

### **Section 2: Duties and Powers**

Officers' duties are listed below. Additional duties may be assigned by the Assembly or President.

#### A. President.

- 1. Provides leadership for the Council and coordinates the development of an action program and draft budget for consideration and action by the Assembly.
- 2. Represents the organization to the public and explains the policies adopted by the Assembly. The President may assign partial responsibility for doing so to other people.
- 3. In cooperation with the Secretary and the Facilitator, if appointed, sets the agenda for Assembly meetings.
- 4. Appoints and replaces members of standing and ad hoc Committees
- 5. Refers problems, complaints and suggestions to the proper Committee.
- 6. Signs or co-signs letters and documents as necessary on behalf of the Council.

#### B. Vice President.

- 1. Assumes the duties of the President in case of absence, illness, and/or conflict of interest/recusal and becomes president on the death, resignation or permanent incapacity of the President for the remainder of the President's term.
- 2. Assists the President and assumes special duties and responsibilities as necessary.

#### C. Secretary.

- 1. Assists the President before each meeting in preparing an agenda.
- 2. Prepares, sends and posts the notices in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, at all designated posting locations, or delegates the tasks.
- 3. Brings to each meeting the minute book, a copy of the bylaws, rules and policies; a list of the Representatives of the Assembly; a list of committees, and a copy of Robert's Rules of Order, Simplified and Applied, New World edition.
- 4. Prepares a list of Representatives  $\frac{1}{2}$  and calls the roll. Notes whether or not a quorum is present.
- 5. Endeavors to take careful and accurate notes of the proceedings and later prepares the minutes, or delegates the task.
- 6. Distributes the minutes to the Assembly for correction and approval, or delegates the <u>task</u>.
- 7. Provides the Facilitator, if appointed, with the exact wording of a pending Motion or of one previously acted on.
- 8. Prepares the minutes and maintains an approved copy in printed form as an official minute book.

- 9. Preserves all records, reports and other official documents, except those specifically assigned to the custody of others.
- 10. May sign or co-sign official documents to attest to their authenticity.

#### D. Treasurer.

- 1. Serves as a required signatory for the expenditure of funds by the Council.
- 2. Attends required financial training sessions of the Department.
- 3. Maintains the Council's book of accounts, as prescribed and approved by the Department, and submits accounting statements to the Department. Complies with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
- 4. Gives a summary of the Council's financial status as directed by the Assembly and responds to questions about receipts and expenditures.
- **E. Community-Based Organization Representative.**
- 1. Candidates for the Community-Based Organization Representative must be associated with a community based organization or a faith based group located in or serving the Palms Neighborhood in order to hold this title.
- 2. Is the liaison of the Council with community organizations, including cultural, educational, neighborhood watch, non-profit, and religious groups.
- 3. Performs other duties as authorized by the Assembly or President.

#### **Section 3: Selection of Officers**

Officer positions are elected during the elections of the Council.

# **Section 4: Officer Terms**

The Officers shall serve two (2) year terms. They may stand for reelection every two (2) years.

#### **Section 5: Officer Removal**

To call for a vote for removal, any member may follow the future agenda setting process outlined in Article VII Section 3 New Business, to place the vote on a future agenda. If successful, a motion to remove the Officer will be placed on the next General Assembly agenda, in conformance with rule (2) below, as well as an agenda item to hold an election to fill the seat, should the removal motion prevail.

Upon a successful affirmative removal vote at the meeting (consisting of a supermajority of aye votes that are equal to or greater than the number required for a General Assembly quorum), the Officer will be removed at that time and will assume the title of "At Large Representative". The Officer shall not be counted as part of the quorum, nor allowed to vote on the matter.

A vote to remove an Officer must be preceded by:

- 1. Proof of notification to the Officer that a vote will be taken. Proof can include a response to an e-mail notification, notification at a public meeting with witnesses present, or certified mail sent to the address on file with DONE.
- 2. A waiting period of fifteen (15) days between the time of mailing the notice or proof of notification and the time of the vote.
- 3. An opportunity for the Officer to address the Assembly before the vote is taken.

# **Section 6: Officer Vacancies**

If an executive board vacancy of any kind occurs, an executive board election to fill the vacancy, from among current members of the board, must be held at the first General Assembly meeting that occurs that is at least 24 hours after the vacancy occurs, except as outlined in the preceding section.

Officer vacancy elections will proceed based on the latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order for "nominations from the floor" (with the "floor" consisting of the members of the board). Voting will take place by roll call vote based on a majority vote. Successive rounds of voting will drop the lowest vote receiving candidate until a majority candidate is elected. If no board member is elected to the seat, the President may fill the seat according to the vacancy rules outlined in Article V Section 6.

# **Article VII REPRESENTATIVES**

#### Section 1: Representatives of the Board

Representatives are the Community-Based Organization, Residential Area, Business, and Youth Representatives.

#### **Section 2: Duties and Powers**

Representatives' duties are listed below. Additional duties may be assigned by the Assembly.

# A. Community-Based Organization Representative.

- 1. Candidates for the Community-Based Organization Representative must be associated with a community based organization or a faith based group located in or serving the Palms Neighborhood in order to hold this title.
- 2. Is the liaison of the Council with community organizations, including cultural, educational, neighborhood watch, non-profit, and religious groups.

# B. Residential Area Representative.

- $\underline{\textbf{1. Candidates for Residential Area Representatives must live within the residential zone}\\ \underline{\textbf{they are running for in order to hold this title.}}$
- 2. Is the liaison of the Council with residents in the applicable residential zone.
- 3. Is responsible to reach out to area residents with information on the activities of the neighborhood council.

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0" + Indent at: 0"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0" + Indept at: 0"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, Right: 0", Line spacing: single, No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 0.16"

**Formatted:** Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0" + Indent at: 0"

#### C. Business Representative.

- 1. Candidates for Business Representatives must own or work at a business in Palms in order to hold this title.
- 2. Is the liaison of the Council with local businesses.
- 3. Is responsible to reach out to local businesses with information on the activities of the neighborhood council.

#### D. Youth Representative.

- 1. Candidates for Youth Representatives must be between 14 and 21 years old, at the time of election, and reside in Palms in order to hold this title.
- 2. Is the liaison of the Council with local youth.
- 3. Is responsible to reach out to local youth with information on the activities of the neighborhood council.

# **E. At-Large Representative.**

1. At-Large Representatives are created as part of the Article VI Section 5 Officer Removal process. An At-Large Representative is responsible to represent Palms stakeholders atlarge as best able or as directed by the President.

# **Article VII COMMITTEES AND THEIR DUTIES**

#### **Section 1: Standing**

The Standing Committees of the Council are set forth in the Ground Rules.

## Section 2: Ad Hoc

The Assembly may create Ad Hoc Committees as needed to deal with temporary issues.

#### Section 3: Committee Creation and Authorization

- A. **Committee Authority** All committee recommendations shall be brought back to the full Assembly for discussion and action.
- B. **Committee Structure** With the exception of the Executive Committee, Committee members shall be appointed by the President and ratified by the Assembly. Standing Committees shall be comprised of at least two (2) Representatives and may include any interested Stakeholders. Ad Hoc Committees shall be comprised of three (3) or fewer Representatives and may include any interested Stakeholders.
- C. **Committee Appointment** All Committee Chairs shall be appointed by the President and confirmed by the Board. The Chairs shall keep a written record of Committee meetings and shall provide regular reports on Committee matters to the Assembly.
- D. Committee Meetings Committee meetings are subject to and shall be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act. Minutes shall be taken at every Committee meeting.

- Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0" + Indent at: 0"
- Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0" + Indent at: 0"
  - Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0" + Indent at: 0"
- Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0" + Indent at: 0"
- **Formatted:** Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0" + Indent at: 0"
- Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0" + Indent at: 0"

- E. **Changes to Committees** The Assembly may establish, disband or make changes as needed to any Standing or Ad Hoc committee. Any such action by the Assembly shall be noted in the Council meeting minutes.
- F. **Removal of Committee Members** Committee members may be removed in the same manner in which they were appointed.

# **Article VIII MEETINGS**

# **Section 1: General Assembly Meetings**

General Assembly Meetings are held at least every quarter. All meetings will be conducted and noticed in accordance with the Brown Act. Agenda and notice of General Assembly meetings shall be publicly posted at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting.

### Section 2: Agenda Setting

The agendas for the meetings are set by the President with the cooperation of the Secretary and the Facilitator, if appointed, and are distributed by the Secretary or any other person delegated to do so. Other board members may add items to the agenda at least 1 week before the meeting if they are within the PNC's purview and time permits, as determined by the President in consultation with the Secretary. The order of the items may be changed by the Assembly at the meeting.

#### **Section 3: New Business**

Any member, during a section titled "New Business" to appear at any General Assembly Meeting, may move to add an item to a future meeting agenda. If seconded, the board shall vote, without discussion, on whether to place the item on a future meeting agenda, as proscribed in Cal Gov Code 54954.2 (a)(3). If successful, that item must be placed on the stated future meeting agenda.

### Section 43: Notifications/Postings

At a minimum, meeting notices shall be posted in compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act and in compliance with the Neighborhood Council Agenda Posting Policy. An updated listing of the Neighborhood Council's physical posting location/s shall be kept on file with the Neighborhood Council.

#### **Section 4: Reconsideration**

The purpose of reconsideration or rescission of a motion is to allow the Assembly to change its mind about a decision. Neither reconsideration nor rescission can be considered when (1) the provisions of the original motion have been partially carried out, (2) the original motion has caused something to be done that can't be undone, or (3) the appointment of a Representative has been approved and the person has been notified.

**Reconsideration.** This motion is in order only at the meeting in which the original decision was made. Only a member who voted on the prevailing side of the original motion may move to reconsider it. If there is a dispute as to whether the member voted on the prevailing side, the Assembly will decide the dispute. Anyone may second the motion to reconsider. If the motion to reconsider passes, then the original motion is taken

up immediately and additional debate and public comment is allowed before the vote is called.

**Rescission.** This motion is in order only at a meeting subsequent to that when the original motion was adopted. The subject matter of the rescission must be posted on the agenda in accordance with the Brown Act. The motion to rescind may be made and seconded by any member. It cannot be amended.

# **Section 5: Special Meetings**

Special Meetings of the Board may be called for a specific purpose, requiring consideration before the next regular Board Meeting. The President, or a minimum of two Officers of the Board, may call a Special Meeting of the Board. Agenda and notice of such meeting shall be publicly posted at least twenty-four (24) hours before the scheduled meeting date. Such notice shall state the reasons for such a meeting, the specific business to be transacted at the meeting and the time and place of the meeting.

### **Article IX FINANCES**

The Council complies with all financial accountability requirements as specified by city ordinance and in the Plan and as stated in the certification application. The Council complies with all financial reporting requirements as prescribed by the Department.

# **Article X ELECTIONS**

### **Section 1: Administration of Elections**

The Council's election will be conducted pursuant to any and all City ordinances, policies and procedures pertaining to Neighborhood Council elections.

#### Section 2: Governing Board Structure and Voting

The number of Assembly seats, the eligibility requirements for holding any specific seats, and which Stakeholders may vote for the seats are noted in Attachment B.

## **Section 3: Minimum Voting Age**

Stakeholders must be at least sixteen (16) years old to vote.

# Section 4: Method of Verifying Stakeholder Status

Stakeholders will self-affirm their stakeholder status in order to vote.

#### **Section 5: Restrictions on Candidates Running for Multiple Seats**

A candidate shall declare their candidacy for no more than one (1) position on the Assembly during a single election cycle.

# Section 6: Other Election Related Language

A. Representatives must be stakeholders aged eighteen (18) or above and eligible to vote for the office they hold, with exception of the Youth Representative who must be a stakeholder aged between sixteen (146) and twenty-one (21).

B. Use of candidates' photographs in official publications of the Council is not allowed.

Commented [NG6]: Weird provision

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Commented [NG7]: Youth seat

- C. Instant run-off voting will be used if no majority is obtained. Instant run-off voting is defined as follows: voters rank candidates in order of choice: first, second, third and so on. If anyone receives a majority of the first choice votes, that candidate is elected. If not, the last place candidate is defeated, and all ballots are counted again, but this time each ballot cast for the defeated candidate counts for the next choice candidate listed on the ballot. The process of eliminating the last place candidate and recounting ballots continues until one (1) candidate receives a majority of the vote.
- D. Representatives take office immediately upon the official results of their election being declared, although a ceremonial transfer of office may take place at a regular or special meeting of the Assembly. There is no swearing-in.
- E. Candidates cannot use the Council's outreach database for electioneering purposes.
- F. The Assembly shall appoint a non-voting "Election Point Person," who will be a resource to candidates, stakeholders, the board and the City to assist in directing Election issues and concerns.

# **Article XI GRIEVANCE PROCESS**

A. In order to express concerns to the Assembly about its procedural matters, decisions, and actions, individual stakeholders or groups of stakeholders may bring forward written grievances.

- B. A grievance panel consisting of at least three (3) stakeholders, chosen by lot from among interested stakeholders and with the approval of the Assembly, shall examine the issue and submit a written report and recommendation to the Secretary within seventy-five (75) days of grievance notification. The matter shall be placed on the agenda of the next meeting. In accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, the matter shall not be discussed until that meeting.
- C. In the event that a grievance cannot be resolved through this process, then the matter may be referred to the Department for consideration pursuant to the Plan.
- D. This grievance process is not intended to apply to Stakeholders who simply disagree with a position taken by the Assembly, but rather to address such things as failure to comply with Department rules or these bylaws.
- E. Representatives are not permitted to file a grievance against another Representative or against the Council.

# Article XII PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

A. The rules of order of the Neighborhood Council are known as the Ground Rules. They include these bylaws and other rules adopted by the Assembly not in conflict with the Brown Act.

B. Where there is no Ground Rule, Robert's Rules of Order, Simplified and Applied (Webster's New World), applies if not in conflict with the Brown Act.

# **Article XIII AMENDMENTS**

A. An amendment to the bylaws may be adopted by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Representatives present at the meeting when the vote is taken, but dissolution of the Assembly can only be enacted by a unanimous vote of the entire Assembly.

B. The amendment becomes valid and effective upon its approval by the Department.

## **Article XIV COMPLIANCE**

#### Section 1: Code of Civility

The Council conducts its business in accordance with the Los Angeles Governmental Ethics Ordinance, LAMC 49.5. It engages in no discrimination based on race, religion, color, creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, sexual orientation, age, disability, marital status, income or political affiliation. The Council abides by all applicable federal, state and local laws. Board members will abide by the Commission's Neighborhood Council Board Member Code of Conduct Policy.

# **Section 2: Training**

All Representatives shall take training in the fundamentals of Neighborhood Council, including, but not limited to, ethics, funding, workplace violence and sexual harassment trainings provided by the City within forty-five (45) days of being seated, or they will lose their Council voting rights. All board members must take ethics and funding training prior to making motions and voting on funding related matters.

# **Section 3: Self Assessment**

Every year, the Council shall conduct a self-assessment pursuant to Article VI, Section 1 of the Plan.

ATTACHMENT A - Map of Palms Neighborhood Council Boundaries
MAPS REMOVED DUE TO ONLINE POSTING FILES SIZE LIMITS

# ATTACHMENT B -Governing Board Structure and Voting Palms Neighborhood Council - 13 Board Seats

Palins Neighborhood Council - 13 Board Seats					
BOARD POSITION	# OF SEATS	ELECTED OR APPOINTED?	ELIGIBILITY TO RUN FOR THE SEAT	ELIGIBILITY TO VOTE FOR THE SEAT	
President Term: 2 Years	1	Elected	Stakeholders 18 years or older.	Stakeholders 16 years or older.	
Vice President Term: 2 Years	1	Elected	Stakeholders 18 years or older	Stakeholders 16 years or older.	
Secretary Term: 2 Years	1	Elected	Stakeholders 18 years or older	Stakeholders 16 years or older.	
Treasurer Term: 2 Years	1	Elected	Stakeholders 18 years or older	Stakeholders 16 years or older.	
Community-Based Organization Representative Term: 2 Years	1	Elected	Stakeholder who is 18 years or older who is associated with a community-based or faith-based group located in or serving Palms.	Stakeholders 16 years or older.	
Residential Representative, Area A Term: 2 Years	1	Elected	Stakeholder who is 18 years or older and who resides in Residential Area A.	Stakeholder who is 16 years or older and who resides in Residential Area A.	
Residential Representative, Area B Term: 2 Years	1	Elected	Stakeholder who is 18 years or older and who resides in Residential Area B.	Stakeholder who is 16 years or older and who resides in Residential Area B.	
Residential Representative, Area C Term: 2 Years	1	Elected	Stakeholder who is 18 years or older and who resides in Residential Area C.	Stakeholder who is 16 years or older and who resides in Residential Area C.	
Residential Representative, Area D Term: 2 Years	1	Elected	Stakeholder who is 18 years or older and who resides in Residential Area D.	Stakeholder who is 16 years or older and who resides in Residential Area D.	
Residential Representative, Area E Term: 2 Years	1	Elected	Stakeholder who is 18 years or older and who resides in Residential Area E.	Stakeholder who is 16 years or older and who resides in Residential Area E.	
Business Representative, Area 1 Term: 2 Years	1 2	Elected	Stakeholder who is 18 years or older and who works or owns a business in Business Area 1 Palms.	Stakeholders 16 years or older.Stakeholder who is 16 years or older and who works or owns a business in Business Area 1.	
Youth Representative. Term: 2 Years	1	Elected	Stakeholder who is 164 years or older and who is less than 21 years of age.Stakeholder who is 18 years or older and who works or owns a business in Business Area 2.	Stakeholders 14 years or older Stakeholder who is 16 years or older and who works or owns a business in Business Area 2.	

Formatted: Right: 0.42", Line spacing: Multiple 1 li